Electronically Filed 9/27/2023 6:41 PM Fourth Judicial District, Ada County Trent Tripple, Clerk of the Court By: Caterina Moritz Gutierrez, Deputy Clerk

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ADA

IDAHO GROUND WATER APPROPRIATORS, INC.,

Petitioner,

VS.

IDAHO DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES, and GARY SPACKMAN in his capacity as the Director of the Idaho Department of Water Resources.

Respondents,

and

AMERICAN FALLS RESERVOIR DISTRICT #2, MINIDOKA IRRIGATION DISTRICT, A&B IRRIGATION DISTRICT, BURLEY IRRIGATION DISTRICT, MILNER IRRIGATION DISTRICT, NORTH SIDE CANAL COMPANY, TWIN FALLS CANAL COMPANY, CITY OF POCATELLO, CITY OF BLISS, CITY OF BURLEY, CITY OF CAREY, CITY OF DECLO, CITY OF DIETRICH, CITY OF GOODING, CITY OF HAZELTON, CITY OF HEYBURN, CITY OF JEROME, CITY OF PAUL, CITY OF RICHFIELD, CITY OF RUPERT, CITY OF SHOSHONE, AND CITY OF WENDELL, BONNEVILLE-JEFFERSON GROUND WATER DISTRICT, and BINGHAM GROUNDWATER DISTRICT,

Intervenors.

IN THE MATTER OF THE
DISTRIBUTION OF WATER TO
VARIOUS WATER RIGHTS HELD BY
AND FOR THE BENEFIT OF A&B
IRRIGATION DISTRICT, AMERICAN

Case No. CV01-23-13173

FALLS RESERVOIR DISTRICT #2, BURLEY IRRIGATION DISTRICT, MILNER IRRIGATION DISTRICT, MINIDOKA IRRIGATION DISTRICT, NORTH SIDE CANAL COMPANY, AND TWIN FALLS CANAL COMPANY

SETTLED AGENCY RECORD ON APPEAL

Judicial Review from the Idaho Department of Water Resources Gary Spackman, Director, Presiding

RAÚL R. LABRADOR ATTORNEY GENERAL

SCOTT L. CAMPBELL Chief of Energy and Natural Resources Division

GARRICK L. BAXTER, ISB No. 6301 KAYLEEN R. RICHTER, ISB No. 11258 Deputy Attorneys General Idaho Department of Water Resources P.O. Box 83720 Boise, Idaho 83720-0098

Telephone: (208) 287-4800 Facsimile: (208) 287-6700 garrick.baxter@idwr.idaho.gov kayleen.richter@idwr.idaho.gov

Attorneys for Respondents

Sarah A. Klahn
Maximilian C. Bricker
SOMACH SIMMONS & DUNN, P.C.
1155 Canyon Blvd., Suite 110
Boulder, CO 80302
Telephone: (303) 449-2834
sklahn@somachlaw.com
mbricker@somachlaw.com

Attorneys for City of Pocatello

Thomas J. Budge Elisheva M. Patterson RACINE OLSON, PLLP 201 E. Center St. / P.O. Box 1391 Pocatello, Idaho 83204 Telephone: (208) 232-6101

Telephone: (208) 232-6101 Facsimile: (208) 232-6109

 $\underline{tj@racineolson.com}$

elisheva@racineolson.com

Attorneys for Petitioner

W. Kent Fletcher FLETCHER LAW OFFICE P.O. BOX 248 Burley, Idaho 83318 Telephone: (208) 678-3250 wkf@pmt.org

Attorney for American Falls Reservoir District #2 and Minidoka Irrigation District John K. Simpson Travis L. Thompson MARTEN LAW LLP 163 Second Ave. West P.O. Box 63 Twin Falls, Idaho 83303-0063

Telephone: (208) 733-0700 jsimpson@martenlaw.com tthompson@martenlaw.com

Attorneys for A&B Irrigation District, Burley Irrigation District, Milner Irrigation District, North Side Canal Company and Twin Falls Canal Company

Skyler C. Johns Nathan M. Olsen Steven L. Taggart OLSEN TAGGART PLLC P.O. Box 3005

Idaho Falls, ID 83403-3005 Telephone: (208) 552-6442 Facsimile: (208) 524-6095 sjohns@olsentaggart.com nolsen@olsentaggart.com staggart@olsentaggart.com icourt@olsentaggart.com

Attorneys for Bonneville-Jefferson Ground Water District

Dylan Anderson DYLAN ANDERSON LAW PLLC P.O. Box 35 Rexburg, Idaho 83440 Telephone: (208) 684-7701 dylan@dylanandersonlaw.com

Attorney for Bingham Groundwater District (BGWD)

Candice M. McHugh Chris M. Bromley MCHUGH BROMLEY, PLLC 380 S. 4th St., Ste. 103 Boise, ID 83702 Telephone: (208) 287-0991 Facsimile: (208) 287-0864

Facsimile: (208) 287-0864 cmchugh@mchughbromley.com cbromley@mchughbromley.com

Attorneys for the Cities of Bliss, Burley, Carey, Declo, Dietrich, Gooding, Hazelton, Heyburn, Jerome, Paul, Richfield, Rupert, Shoshone, and Wendell

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents iv-xiii
Index xiv-xxiii
Fifth Amended Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-Season Demand and Reasonable Carryover, April 21, 2023
Final Order Regarding April 2023 Forecast Supply (Methodology Steps 1-3), April 21, 2023
Notice of Hearing, Notice of Prehearing Conference, and Order Authorizing Discovery, April 21, 2023
Coalition of Cities' Request for Hearing, April 28, 2023
Motion for Appointment of Independent Hearing Officer, April 28, 2023 73–79
Motion for Continuance, April 28, 2023
McCain Foods USA, Inc.'s Request for Hearing and Objection, April 28, 2023
Coalition of Cities' Amended Request for Hearing, August 28, 2023 94–98
Pocatello's Request for Hearing, April 28, 2023
Notice of Possible Curtailment of Ground Water Rights with Priority Dates Junior to December 30, 1953, May 1, 2023
Scheduling Order and Order Authorizing Remote Appearance at Hearing, May 2, 2023
Notice of Substitution of Counsel for Bingham Ground Water District, May 2, 2023
IGWA's Petition for Reconsideration and Request for Hearing, May 2, 2023 135–138
Amalgamated Sugar Company's Request for Hearing, Objection, Identification of Issues and Notice of Mitigation, May 4, 2023
Declaration of Candice M. McHugh in Support of Notice of Mitigation, May 4, 2023
McCain Foods USA, Inc.'s Notice of Mitigation, May 4, 2023
City of Idaho Falls Challenge and Request for Hearing, May 4, 2023 154–158

Bonneville-Jefferson Ground Water District's Request for Hearing, May 4, 2023	159–163
Joint Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum of Jennifer Sukow, P.E., P.G., May 4, 2023	164–173
Joint Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum of Matthew Anders, P.G., May 4, 2023	174–182
Pocatello's Statement of Issues, May 4, 2023	183–187
Coalition of Cities' Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	188–193
IGWA's Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	194–197
McCain Foods USA, Inc.'s Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	198–201
Notice of Ground Water District Mitigation, May 5, 2023	202–246
Bonneville-Jefferson Ground Water District's Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	247–251
Bingham Ground Water District's Request for Hearing, May 5, 2023	252–255
City of Idaho Falls Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	256–262
Surface Water Coalition's Request for Hearing and Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	263–267
Falls Irrigation District's Notice of Communication to Water District 01 Watermaster, May 5, 2023	268–274
A&B Irrigation District's Notice of Communication to Water District 01 Watermaster, May 5, 2023	275–281
Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 5, 2023	282–293
Declaration of Candice M. McHugh, May 5, 2023	294–297
Order Denying Appointment of Independent Hearing Officer and Motion for Continuance and Limiting Scope of Depositions, May 5, 2023	298–304
Notice of Materials Department Witnesses May Rely Upon at Hearing and Intent to Take Official Notice, May 5, 2023	305–310
Declaration of Jaxon Higgs, May 5, 2023	311–314
Declaration of Sophia Sigstedt, May 5, 2023	315–322
Motion for Reconsideration, May 5, 2023	323–330

Declaration of Bryce Contor in Support of Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 5, 2023	1–336
Declaration of Skyler C. Johns in Support of Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 5, 2023	7–342
Declaration of Thane Kindred in Support of Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 5, 2023	3–348
Declaration of Gregory K. Sullivan, P.E. (in support of Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance), May 8, 2023	9–362
Declaration of Gregory K. Sullivan, P.E. (in support of the groundwater users' Motion for Reconsideration as to Twin Falls Canal Company's irrigated acres), May 8, 2023	3–377
Surface Water Coalition's Opposition to Groundwater User's Motion for Reconsideration of Order Denying Motion for Continuance, May 8, 2023 378	8–392
I.R.C.P. 30(b)(6) Notice of Taking Deposition Duces Tecum of IDWR, May 8, 2023	3–399
Groundwater Users' First Set of Request for Production to IDWR; Or, Alternatively, Request for Public Records, May 8, 2023	0–406
Department's Response to Groundwater Users' Request for Production and Request for Public Records, May 18, 2023	7–415
Entry of Appearance, May 18, 2023	6–418
Cities' I.R.C.P. 30(b)(6) Notice of Taking Deposition Duces Tecum of Twin Falls Canal Company, May 19, 2023	9–424
Order Denying Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 19, 2023	5–434
Joint Notice of Continued Deposition Duces Tecum of Matthew Anders, P.G. (Day 2), May 22, 2023	5–439
Cities' Amended I.R.C.P. 30(b)(6) Notice of Taking Deposition Duces Tecum of Twin Falls Canal Company, May 22, 2023	0–445
Motion to Re-set Hearing Dates, May 22, 2023	6–451
Motion to Re-set Hearing Dates, May 22, 2023	

Declaration of David Colvin, May 23, 2023	472–479
Order Determining Deficiency in IGWA's Notice of Secured Water, May 23, 2023	480–489
Order Granting Requests for Hearing, May 23, 2023	490–494
Amended Joint Notice of Continued Deposition Duces Tecum of Matthew Anders, P.G. (Day 2), May 25, 2023	495–499
Order Denying Motion to Re-set Hearing, May 26, 2023	500-504
McCain Foods USA, Inc.'s Identification of Witnesses and Exhibits, May 30, 2023	505–508
Amalgamated Sugar Company's Identification of Witnesses and Exhibits, May 30, 2023	509–512
Surface Water Coalition's Witness List, May 30, 2023	513-518
Surface Water Coalition's Notice of Service of Exhibits and Expert Reports, May 30, 2023	519–522
City of Idaho Falls, City of Pocatello, and Coalition of Cities' Joint Disclosure of Proposed Witnesses for Hearing, May 30, 2023	
City of Idaho Falls, City of Pocatello, and Coalition of Cities' Joint Disclosure of Proposed Exhibits for Hearing, May 30, 2023	
IGWA's Witness and Exhibit List, May 30, 2023	536–545
Bingham Ground Water District's Disclosure of Proposed Exhibits, Proposed Witnesses, and Expert Report of Darryll Olsen Ph.D., May 30, 2023	546–574
Bonneville-Jefferson's Witness and Exhibit List, May 30, 2023	575–623
City of Idaho Falls, City of Pocatello, and Coalition of Cities;' Amended Joint Disclosure of Proposed Exhibits for Hearing, June 1, 2023	
Motion for Director to Issue Subpoenas, June 1, 2023	631–635
IGWA's Amended Notice of Mitigation, June 1, 2023	636–708
IGWA's Amended Witness and Exhibit Lists, June 2, 2023	709–725
Surface Water Coalition's Response to IGWA's Amended Notice of Mitigation, June 5, 2023	726–731
Surface Water Coalition's Motion to Limit Scope of Hearing, June 5, 2023	732–791

City of Idaho Falls, City of Pocatello, and Coalition of Cities' Second Amended Joint Disclosure of Proposed Exhibits for Hearing, June 5, 2023 792–861
Hearing Subpoena: Jennifer Sukow, June 5, 2023
Email to the Parties Regarding 2023 Milner and Minidoka Shapefiles, June 6, 2023
IGWA's Reply to SWC's Response to IGWA's Amended Notice of Mitigation, June 6, 2023
IGWA's Petition for Reconsideration of Order Determining Deficiency in IGWA's Notice of Secured Water, June 6, 2023
Order Denying Motion for Director to Issue Subpoenas, June 7, 2023
IGWA's Motion to Take Official Notice of Joint Forecast, June 8, 2023 881–907
Surface Water Coalition's Response to IGWA's Reply, June 12, 2023 908–923
Surface Water Coalition's Post-hearing Brief, June 16, 2023
City of Pocatello, City of Idaho Falls, and Coalition of Cities' Closing Brief, June 16, 2023
IGWA's Post-Hearing Brief, June 16, 2023
Bonneville-Jefferson's Post-Hearing Brief and Joinder in Support of IGWA's Post-Hearing Brief, June 16, 2023
Bingham Groundwater District Joinder in IGWA's and Bonneville-Jefferson's Post-hearing Brief, and Supplemental Brief, June 16, 2023
Sixth Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-season Demand and Reasonable Carryover, July 19, 2023 1004–1053
Order Revising April 2023 Forecast Supply and Amending Curtailment Order (Methodology Steps 5 & 6), July 19, 2023
Post-Hearing Order Regarding Fifth Amended Methodology Order, July 19, 2023
Notice that Questions Concerning the Sufficiency of IGWA's Mitigation Notices are Moot, July 20, 2023
Surface Water Coalition's Petition for Reconsideration & Clarification; Request for Enforcement of Orders Approving 2016 Stipulated Plan, July 31, 2023

Hearing and Order Authorizing Discovery, August 3, 2023
IGWA's Petition for Reconsideration, August 3, 2023
IGWA's Response to Surface Water Coalition's Petition for Reconsideration & Clarification and Request for Enforcement of Order Approving 2016 Stipulated Plan, August 3, 2023
Order Granting Petition for Reconsideration/Clarification in Part and Denying Request for Enforcement, August 11, 2023
Surface Water Coalition's Response to Cities' Request for Hearing and Order Authorizing Discovery, August 22, 2023
Order Denying IGWA's Petition for Review, August 23, 2023
Order Denying Request for Hearing and Motion to Authorize Discovery, August 23, 2023
OFFICIALLY NOTICED DOCUMENTS
Materials Department Witnesses May Rely Upon at Hearing (File Folder), May 5, 2023
Officially Noticed 2023 Milner and Minidoka Shapefiles (File Folder), June 6, 2023
EXHIBITS OFFERED AND ADMITTED DURING THE AGENCY HEARING June 6–9, 2023
Exhibit 1—Pre-Filed Direct Testimony of Jay Barlogi
Exhibit 1A—TFCC Annual Diversions April 1 - October 31 1988-2022 Chart
Exhibit 2—A&B Water Delivery Summary to Certain Unit B Lands (2016-2022)
Exhibit 3—Groundwater Expert Report – 2023 Methodology
Exhibit 4—SWC Expert Report on Fifth Methodology and Related Orders 1232–1261
Exhibit 5—TFCC with 2017 Acre Differences letter

Exhibit 8—2011 Annual Report, Water District 1	1265–1276
Exhibit 103—20150316 SWC Staff Recommendations Memo (CM-DC-2010-001)	
Exhibit 118—20230116 SWC Comments to IDWR re Methodology Update	1300-1304
Exhibit 300—4/21/2023 Fifth Amended Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-Season Demand and Reasonable Carryover	1305–1351
Exhibit 301—4/21/2023 Final Order Regarding April 2023 Forecast Supply (Methodology Steps 1-3)	1352–1365
Exhibit 305—4/20/2022 Final Order Regarding April 2022 Forecast Supply (Methodology Steps 1-3)	1366–1378
Exhibit 306—4/19/2016 Fourth Amended Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-Season Demand and Reasonable Carryover	1379–1420
Exhibit 317—4/25/2023 Surface Water Coalition Delivery Call, Amended 5th Methodology and April 2023 As-Applied Orders, FAQs (Sukow Depo Ex. 5).	
Exhibit 318—11/28/2022 IDWR, SWC Methodology - Calculation of Priority Dates for Curtailment of Junior Ground Water Users, Presented to the SWC Methodology Technical Working Group (Sukow Depo Ex. 6)	
Exhibit 324—2/19/2015 Proposed Modification to Method for Determining Reasonable In-Season Demand for the Surface Water Coalition (Anders Depo Ex. 13)	
Exhibit 325—12/1/2022 Proposed Modification to Method for Determining Reasonable In-Season Demand for the Surface Water Coalition: Use of the Near Real Time METRIC (Anders Depo Ex. 14)	1452–1472
Exhibit 332—1990-2022 Water Delivery Schedule Spreadsheets (Barlogi Ex. 23)	1473–1483
Exhibit 334—5/24/2023 Twin Falls County Census Bureau Population Graph (Barlogi Ex. 25)	1484
Exhibit 337—3/29/2013 A-B et al Response to 2.21.2013 Letter re Step 1 Methodology Order (Barlogi Ex. 29)	1485–1507
Exhibit 338—10/31/2022 TFCC Profit & Loss 11.2014 through 10.2022 (Barlogi Ex. 30)	1508–1510

Exhibit 347A—6/5/2023 Updated Expert Report of Gregory K. Sullivan, P.E. on Behalf of the Cities of Pocatello, Idaho Falls, and the Coalition of Cities	1511–1579
Exhibit 348—City of Pocatello – Summary of Water Rights	1580–1582
Exhibit 349—City of Idaho Falls – Summary of Water Rights	1583–1584
Exhibit 350—Coalition of Cities – Summary of Water Rights	1585–1587
Exhibit 363—20220416 Amended Application for Permit 45-14537	1588–1596
Exhibit 364—Blown-up page of Contract Between State Board of Land Commissioners and Twin Falls Land & Water Company Dated January 2, 1903	1597
Exhibit 365—Summary of TFCC Return Flows (AF) 2009-2022 Charts	1598
Exhibit 366—Mountain Snow Water Equivalent As of Monday, April 3, 2023, Idaho NRCS SNOTEL Data	1599
Exhibit 500—Expert Report Regarding Selected Technical Aspects of the Fifth Amended Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-Season Demand and Reasonable Carryover, Bryce Contor	
Exhibit 502—Snake River Plain Aquifer Model Scenario, 2006	1633–1655
Exhibit 504—Staff memorandum in response to expert reports submitted for Rangen Delivery Call (In the Matter of Distribution for Water to Water Right Nos. 36-02551 and 36-07694), 2013	1656–1736
Exhibit 505—Description of the IDWR/UI Snake River Plain Aquifer Model (SRPAM), 1999	1737–1837
Exhibit 506—Enhance Snake Plain Aquifer Model Final Report, 2006	1838–2069
Exhibit 515—Determination of Source of Irrigation Water for Calibration of Eastern Snake Plain Aquifer Model Version 2, 2008	
Exhibit 600—McCain's Water Rights at Burley Plant	2085–2088
Exhibit 601—McCain's Petition to SWID	2089–2091
Exhibit 602—McCain's Notice of Mitigation	2092–2097
Exhibit 603—May 24, 2023 Email from Garrick Baxter to Candice McHugh	2098
Exhibit 604—May 1, 2023 Letter from IDWR	2099–2100
Exhibit 700—Amalgamated's Water Rights at Mini-Cassia Plant	2101

Exhibit 701—Amalgamated's Petition to Magic Valley Ground Water District	. 2102–2103
Exhibit 702—Amalgamated's Notice of Mitigation	. 2104–2108
Exhibit 703—May 24, 2023 Email from Garrick Baxter to Candice McHugh.	. 2109–2110
Exhibit 829—Table 3-1 Higgs analysis on IGWA proportionate share related to reach gain benefits	. 2111
Exhibit 837—Expert Report of Sofia Sigstedt	. 2112–2368
Exhibit 837A—Updated Expert Report of Sofia Sigstedt w Attachments	. 2369–2625
Exhibit 838—Annotated Figures 2 and 3 of Brockway Expert Report	. 2626–2627
Exhibit 900—20221116 SWC Delivery Call Overview	. 2628–2646
Exhibit 901—20221117 Forecast_Supply_SWC_TWG	. 2647–2660
Exhibit 902—Forecast_Supply_SWC_TWG_12-14-22	. 2661–2679
Exhibit 903—20221119 NRT METRIC_SWC_TWG_11-17-22_with supplemental slides	. 2680–2714
Exhibit 904—20221119 BLY_SWC_TWG_11-16-22_with supplemental slides	. 2715–2749
Exhibit 905—20221119 ESPAM_SWC_TWG_11-28-22	. 2750–2771
Exhibit 906—20221119 Project Efficiency_SWC_TWG_11-28-22_with supplemental slides	. 2772–2794
Exhibit 908—NRT_METRIC_SWC_TWG_12-1-22	. 2795–2815
Exhibit 909—NRT_METRIC_SWC_TWG_12-9-22_v.2	. 2816–2832
Exhibit 910—20221209 BLY_reasonable carryover	. 2833–2844
Exhibit 912—20221214 Forecast_Supply_SWC_TWG_12-14-2022_V2 (Numbered)	. 2845–2865
Exhibit 914—20221223 IDWR Preliminary Recommendations	. 2866
Exhibit 915—20230116 Cities Comments on SWC Metholodogy Recommendation	. 2867–2878
Exhibit 916—20230116 Lynker Memo re IDWR Staff Recommendations	. 2879–2885
Exhibit 928—Depo Ex. 17 - 20221201 NRT METRIC_SWC_TWG_12-1-22_with supplemental slides (Numbered)	. 2886–2907 CONTENTS

OFFER OF PROOF ADMITTED DURING THE AGENCY HEARING June 6–9, 2023

Offer of Proof 400—20230530 Pacific Northwest Project Technical Information Memorandum
AGENCY RECORD RESPONSES, CERTIFICATIONS, AND NOTICES
Notice of Lodging the Agency Transcript and Record with the Agency, August 30, 2023
IGWA's Objection to the Agency Record and Transcript, September 13, 2023 2936–2943
Response to Objection; Order Settling the Agency Transcript and Record, September 27, 2023
Agency's Certificate of Record and Exhibits, September 27, 2023
Notice of Lodging the Settled Agency Transcript and Record with the District Court, September 27, 2023

INDEX

A&B Irrigation District's Notice of Communication to Water District 01 Watermaster, May 5, 2023	75–281
Agency's Certificate of Record and Exhibits, September 27, 2023	950–2951
Amalgamated Sugar Company's Identification of Witnesses and Exhibits, May 30, 2023	09–512
Amalgamated Sugar Company's Request for Hearing, Objection, Identification of Issues and Notice of Mitigation, May 4, 2023	39–143
Amended Joint Notice of Continued Deposition Duces Tecum of Matthew Anders, P.G. (Day 2), May 25, 2023	95–499
Bingham Ground Water District's Disclosure of Proposed Exhibits, Proposed Witnesses, and Expert Report of Darryll Olsen Ph.D., May 30, 2023	46–574
Bingham Ground Water District's Request for Hearing, May 5, 2023	52–255
Bingham Groundwater District Joinder in IGWA's and Bonneville-Jefferson's Post-hearing Brief, and Supplemental Brief, June 16, 2023	96–1003
Bonneville-Jefferson Ground Water District's Request for Hearing, May 4, 2023	59–163
Bonneville-Jefferson Ground Water District's Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	47–251
Bonneville-Jefferson's Post-Hearing Brief and Joinder in Support of IGWA's Post-Hearing Brief, June 16, 2023	80–995
Bonneville-Jefferson's Witness and Exhibit List, May 30, 2023	75–623
Cities' Amended I.R.C.P. 30(b)(6) Notice of Taking Deposition Duces Tecum of Twin Falls Canal Company, May 22, 2023	40–445
Cities' I.R.C.P. 30(b)(6) Notice of Taking Deposition Duces Tecum of Twin Falls Canal Company, May 19, 2023	19–424
City of Idaho Falls Challenge and Request for Hearing, May 4, 2023 15	54–158
City of Idaho Falls, City of Pocatello, and Coalition of Cities;' Amended Joint Disclosure of Proposed Exhibits for Hearing, June 1, 2023	24–630
City of Idaho Falls, City of Pocatello, and Coalition of Cities' Joint Disclosure of Proposed Witnesses for Hearing, May 30, 2023	23–528

City of Idaho Falls, City of Pocatello, and Coalition of Cities' Joint Disclosure of Proposed Exhibits for Hearing, May 30, 2023
City of Idaho Falls, City of Pocatello, and Coalition of Cities' Second Amended Joint Disclosure of Proposed Exhibits for Hearing, June 5, 2023 792–861
City of Idaho Falls Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023
City of Pocatello, City of Idaho Falls, and Coalition of Cities' Closing Brief, June 16, 2023
City of Pocatello's, City of Idaho Falls', and Coalition of Cities' Request for Hearing and Order Authorizing Discovery, August 3, 2023
Coalition of Cities' Amended Request for Hearing, August 28, 2023 94–98
Coalition of Cities' Request for Hearing, April 28, 2023
Coalition of Cities' Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023
Declaration of Bryce Contor in Support of Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 5, 2023
Declaration of Candice M. McHugh, May 5, 2023
Declaration of Candice M. McHugh in Support of Notice of Mitigation, May 4, 2023
Declaration of David Colvin, May 23, 2023
Declaration of Gregory K. Sullivan, P.E. (in support of Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance), May 8, 2023
Declaration of Gregory K. Sullivan, P.E. (in support of the groundwater users' Motion for Reconsideration as to Twin Falls Canal Company's irrigated acres), May 8, 2023
Declaration of Jaxon Higgs, May 5, 2023
Declaration of Skyler C. Johns in Support of Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 5, 2023
Declaration of Sophia Sigstedt, May 5, 2023
Declaration of Thane Kindred in Support of Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 5, 2023
Department's Response to Groundwater Users' Request for Production and Request for Public Records, May 18, 2023

Email to the Parties Regarding 2023 Milner and Minidoka Shapefiles, June 6, 2023	864
Entry of Appearance, May 18, 2023	416–418
Exhibit 1—Pre-Filed Direct Testimony of Jay Barlogi	1178–1205
Exhibit 1A—TFCC Annual Diversions April 1 - October 31 1988-2022 Chart	1206
Exhibit 2—A&B Water Delivery Summary to Certain Unit B Lands (2016-2022)	1207
Exhibit 3—Groundwater Expert Report – 2023 Methodology	1208-1231
Exhibit 4—SWC Expert Report on Fifth Methodology and Related Orders	1232-1261
Exhibit 5—TFCC with 2017 Acre Differences letter	1262
Exhibit 6—Selected Comparison of 2017 area2	1263
Exhibit 7—Selected Comparison of 2017 area3	1264
Exhibit 8—2011 Annual Report, Water District 1	1265–1276
Exhibit 103—20150316 SWC Staff Recommendations Memo (CM-DC-2010-001)	
Exhibit 118—20230116 SWC Comments to IDWR re Methodology Update	1300-1304
Exhibit 300—4/21/2023 Fifth Amended Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-Season Demand and Reasonable Carryover	1305–1351
Exhibit 301—4/21/2023 Final Order Regarding April 2023 Forecast Supply (Methodology Steps 1-3)	1352–1365
Exhibit 305—4/20/2022 Final Order Regarding April 2022 Forecast Supply (Methodology Steps 1-3)	1366–1378
Exhibit 306—4/19/2016 Fourth Amended Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-Season Demand and Reasonable Carryover	1379–1420
Exhibit 317—4/25/2023 Surface Water Coalition Delivery Call, Amended 5th Methodology and April 2023 As-Applied Orders, FAQs (Sukow Depo Ex. 5).	
Exhibit 318—11/28/2022 IDWR, SWC Methodology - Calculation of Priority Dates for Curtailment of Junior Ground Water Users, Presented to the SWC Methodology Technical Working Group (Sukow Depo Ex. 6)	

Exhibit 324—2/19/2015 Proposed Modification to Method for Determining Reasonable In-Season Demand for the Surface Water Coalition (Anders Depo Ex. 13)	
Exhibit 325—12/1/2022 Proposed Modification to Method for Determining Reasonable In-Season Demand for the Surface Water Coalition: Use of the Near Real Time METRIC (Anders Depo Ex. 14)	1452–1472
Exhibit 332—1990-2022 Water Delivery Schedule Spreadsheets (Barlogi Ex. 23)	1473–1483
Exhibit 334—5/24/2023 Twin Falls County Census Bureau Population Graph (Barlogi Ex. 25)	1484
Exhibit 337—3/29/2013 A-B et al Response to 2.21.2013 Letter re Step 1 Methodology Order (Barlogi Ex. 29)	1485–1507
Exhibit 338—10/31/2022 TFCC Profit & Loss 11.2014 through 10.2022 (Barlogi Ex. 30)	1508–1510
Exhibit 347A—6/5/2023 Updated Expert Report of Gregory K. Sullivan, P.E. on Behalf of the Cities of Pocatello, Idaho Falls, and the Coalition of Cities	1511–1579
Exhibit 348—City of Pocatello – Summary of Water Rights	1580–1582
Exhibit 349—City of Idaho Falls – Summary of Water Rights	1583–1584
Exhibit 350—Coalition of Cities – Summary of Water Rights	1585–1587
Exhibit 363—20220416 Amended Application for Permit 45-14537	1588–1596
Exhibit 364—Blown-up page of Contract Between State Board of Land Commissioners and Twin Falls Land & Water Company Dated January 2, 1903	1597
Exhibit 365—Summary of TFCC Return Flows (AF) 2009-2022 Charts	1598
Exhibit 366—Mountain Snow Water Equivalent As of Monday, April 3, 2023, Idaho NRCS SNOTEL Data	1599
Exhibit 500—Expert Report Regarding Selected Technical Aspects of the Fifth Amended Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-Season Demand and Reasonable Carryover, Bryce Contor	
Exhibit 502—Snake River Plain Aquifer Model Scenario, 2006	1633–1655

Exhibit 504—Staff memorandum in response to expert reports submitted for Rangen Delivery Call (In the Matter of Distribution for Water to Water Right Nos. 36-02551 and 36-07694), 2013	
Exhibit 505—Description of the IDWR/UI Snake River Plain Aquifer Model (SRPAM), 1999	,
Exhibit 506—Enhance Snake Plain Aquifer Model Final Report, 2006)
Exhibit 515—Determination of Source of Irrigation Water for Calibration of Eastern Snake Plain Aquifer Model Version 2, 2008	ļ
Exhibit 600—McCain's Water Rights at Burley Plant)
Exhibit 601—McCain's Petition to SWID	
Exhibit 602—McCain's Notice of Mitigation	,
Exhibit 603—May 24, 2023 Email from Garrick Baxter to Candice McHugh 2098	
Exhibit 604—May 1, 2023 Letter from IDWR)
Exhibit 700—Amalgamated's Water Rights at Mini-Cassia Plant	
Exhibit 701—Amalgamated's Petition to Magic Valley Ground Water District	,
Exhibit 702—Amalgamated's Notice of Mitigation)
Exhibit 703—May 24, 2023 Email from Garrick Baxter to Candice McHugh 2109–2110)
Exhibit 829—Table 3-1 Higgs analysis on IGWA proportionate share related to reach gain benefits	
Exhibit 837—Expert Report of Sofia Sigstedt)
Exhibit 837A—Updated Expert Report of Sofia Sigstedt w Attachments 2369–2625	i
Exhibit 838—Annotated Figures 2 and 3 of Brockway Expert Report	,
Exhibit 900—20221116 SWC Delivery Call Overview)
Exhibit 901—20221117 Forecast_Supply_SWC_TWG)
Exhibit 902—Forecast_Supply_SWC_TWG_12-14-22)
Exhibit 903—20221119 NRT METRIC_SWC_TWG_11-17-22_with supplemental slides	ļ
Exhibit 904—20221119 BLY_SWC_TWG_11-16-22_with supplemental	
slides	

Exhibit 905—20221119 ESPAM_SWC_TWG_11-28-22	2750–2771
Exhibit 906—20221119 Project Efficiency_SWC_TWG_11-28-22_with supplemental slides	2772–2794
Exhibit 908—NRT_METRIC_SWC_TWG_12-1-22	2795–2815
Exhibit 909—NRT_METRIC_SWC_TWG_12-9-22_v.2	2816–2832
Exhibit 910—20221209 BLY_reasonable carryover	2833–2844
Exhibit 912—20221214 Forecast_Supply_SWC_TWG_12-14-2022_V2 (Numbered)	2845–2865
Exhibit 914—20221223 IDWR Preliminary Recommendations	2866
Exhibit 915—20230116 Cities Comments on SWC Metholodogy Recommendation	2867–2878
Exhibit 916—20230116 Lynker Memo re IDWR Staff Recommendations	2879–2885
Exhibit 928—Depo Ex. 17 - 20221201 NRT METRIC_SWC_TWG_12-1-22_with supplemental slides (Numbered)	2886–2907
Falls Irrigation District's Notice of Communication to Water District 01 Watermaster, May 5, 2023	268–274
Fifth Amended Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-Season Demand and Reasonable Carryover, April 21, 2023	
Final Order Regarding April 2023 Forecast Supply (Methodology Steps 1-3), April 21, 2023	48–61
Ground Water Districts' I.R.C.P. 30(b)(6) Notice of Taking Deposition Duces Tecum of Twin Falls Canal Company, May 23, 2023	
Groundwater Users' First Set of Request for Production to IDWR; Or, Alternatively, Request for Public Records, May 8, 2023	400–406
Hearing Subpoena: Jennifer Sukow, June 5, 2023	862–863
I.R.C.P. 30(b)(6) Notice of Taking Deposition Duces Tecum of IDWR, May 8, 2023	393–399
IGWA's Amended Notice of Mitigation, June 1, 2023	636–708
IGWA's Amended Witness and Exhibit Lists, June 2, 2023	709–725
IGWA's Motion to Take Official Notice of Joint Forecast, June 8, 2023	881–907

IGWA's Objection to the Agency Record and Transcript, September 13, 2023	2936–2943
IGWA's Petition for Reconsideration, August 3, 2023	1135–1141
IGWA's Petition for Reconsideration and Request for Hearing, May 2, 2023	135–138
IGWA's Petition for Reconsideration of Order Determining Deficiency in IGWA's Notice of Secured Water, June 6, 2023	. 870–874
IGWA's Post-Hearing Brief, June 16, 2023	958–979
IGWA's Reply to SWC's Response to IGWA's Amended Notice of Mitigation, June 6, 2023	. 865–869
IGWA's Response to Surface Water Coalition's Petition for Reconsideration & Clarification and Request for Enforcement of Order Approving 2016 Stipulated Plan, August 3, 2023	. 1142–1147
IGWA's Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	194–197
IGWA's Witness and Exhibit List, May 30, 2023	536–545
Index	xiv–xxiii
Joint Notice of Continued Deposition Duces Tecum of Matthew Anders, P.G. (Day 2), May 22, 2023	. 435–439
Joint Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum of Jennifer Sukow, P.E., P.G., May 4, 2023	. 164–173
Joint Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum of Matthew Anders, P.G., May 4, 2023	. 174–182
Materials Department Witnesses May Rely Upon at Hearing (File Folder), May 5, 2023	. 1176
McCain Foods USA, Inc.'s Identification of Witnesses and Exhibits, May 30, 2023	. 505–508
McCain Foods USA, Inc.'s Notice of Mitigation, May 4, 2023	148–153
McCain Foods USA, Inc.'s Request for Hearing and Objection, April 28, 2023	. 90–93
McCain Foods USA, Inc.'s Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	198–201
Motion for Appointment of Independent Hearing Officer, April 28, 2023	73–79
Motion for Continuance, April 28, 2023	. 80–89

Motion for Director to Issue Subpoenas, June 1, 2023	631–635
Motion for Reconsideration, May 5, 2023	323–330
Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 5, 2023	282–293
Motion to Re-set Hearing Dates, May 22, 2023	446–451
Notice of Ground Water District Mitigation, May 5, 2023	202–246
Notice of Hearing, Notice of Prehearing Conference, and Order Authorizing Discovery, April 21, 2023	
Notice of Lodging the Agency Transcript and Record with the Agency, August 30, 2023	2933–2935
Notice of Lodging the Settled Agency Transcript and Record with the Distri Court, September 27, 2023	
Notice of Materials Department Witnesses May Rely Upon at Hearing and Intent to Take Official Notice, May 5, 2023	305–310
Notice of Possible Curtailment of Ground Water Rights with Priority Dates Junior to December 30, 1953, May 1, 2023	104–125
Notice of Substitution of Counsel for Bingham Ground Water District, May 2023	•
Notice that Questions Concerning the Sufficiency of IGWA's Mitigation Notices are Moot, July 20, 2023	1101–1107
Offer of Proof 400—20230530 Pacific Northwest Project Technical Information Memorandum	2908–2932
Officially Noticed 2023 Milner and Minidoka Shapefiles (File Folder), June 2023	
Order Denying Appointment of Independent Hearing Officer and Motion for Continuance and Limiting Scope of Depositions, May 5, 2023	
Order Denying IGWA's Petition for Review, August 23, 2023	1164–1168
Order Denying Motion for Director to Issue Subpoenas, June 7, 2023	875–880
Order Denying Motion for Reconsideration of Denial of Continuance, May 19, 2023	425–434
Order Denying Motion to Re-set Hearing, May 26, 2023	500–504

Order Denying Request for Hearing and Motion to Authorize Discovery, August 23, 2023	. 1169–1175
Order Determining Deficiency in IGWA's Notice of Secured Water, May 23, 2023	. 480–489
Order Granting Petition for Reconsideration/Clarification in Part and Denying Request for Enforcement, August 11, 2023	
Order Granting Requests for Hearing, May 23, 2023	490–494
Order Revising April 2023 Forecast Supply and Amending Curtailment Order (Methodology Steps 5 & 6), July 19, 2023	
Pocatello's Request for Hearing, April 28, 2023	. 99–103
Pocatello's Statement of Issues, May 4, 2023	. 183–187
Post-Hearing Order Regarding Fifth Amended Methodology Order, July 19, 2023	. 1067–1100
Response to Objection; Order Settling the Agency Transcript and Record, September 27, 2023	. 2944–2949
Scheduling Order and Order Authorizing Remote Appearance at Hearing, May 2, 2023	. 126–131
Sixth Final Order Regarding Methodology for Determining Material Injury to Reasonable In-season Demand and Reasonable Carryover, July 19, 2023	
Surface Water Coalition's Motion to Limit Scope of Hearing, June 5, 2023	. 732–791
Surface Water Coalition's Notice of Service of Exhibits and Expert Reports, May 30, 2023	. 519–522
Surface Water Coalition's Opposition to Groundwater User's Motion for Reconsideration of Order Denying Motion for Continuance, May 8, 2023	. 378–392
Surface Water Coalition's Opposition to Groundwater Users' Motion to Reset Hearing Dates, May 23, 2023	. 457–471
Surface Water Coalition's Petition for Reconsideration & Clarification; Request for Enforcement of Orders Approving 2016 Stipulated Plan, July 31, 2023	. 1108–1129
Surface Water Coalition's Post-hearing Brief, June 16, 2023	. 924–941
Surface Water Coalition's Request for Hearing and Statement of Issues, May 5, 2023	263_267

Authorizing Discovery, August 22, 2023	1155–1163
Surface Water Coalition's Response to IGWA's Amended Notice of Mitigation, June 5, 2023	726–731
Surface Water Coalition's Response to IGWA's Reply, June 12, 2023	908–923
Surface Water Coalition's Witness List, May 30, 2023	513–518
Table of Contents	iv–xiii